NONINGTON PARISH COUNCIL

PLANNING APPLICATION 21/01615

Heritage Statement

  There must be concerns about any document which has been  not been properly researched. For example,  there  is no understanding that Nonington was never a nucleated village ( ie church, manor house and cottages around ) but a collection of hamlets. Secondly, the land concerned was never associated with Wingham but was Crown  land gifted to the Abbey of St Albans in 1096. The site was not part of the Hammond estate until they purchased it in 1698  and then built the Malt House  in 1704 The site of College Cottage was purchased later and the cottage built  post 1839  and later occupied by the gardener  from the Hammond estate who, inter alia, looked after the walled garden. (Their  relative still lives in the village). The cottage was built by William Osmund Hammond although the architect is not known.
   There is no disagreement with the assessment of the present condition of the wall surrounding the former garden which probably came into existence as a result of William Hammond spending large sums  in 1790  refurbishing St Albans Court and  the associated parkland and turning his Tudor walled garden into a  flower and fruit feature. It  seems likely that it was his son, William Osmund who felt the need to replace the Tudor garden  with kitchen gardens .
  The Report  emphasizes that the below ground archaeological potential of the Site lies outside its scope but  this does need to be addressed in the planning application. This Report implies that there is little there. However the evidence below would suggest that that the site  has at least moderate below ground potential archaeology.
   It should first be noted that the site  falls within the  study area of the Easole and Nonington Historic Landscape Project. 
  The following are known sites:
     * Roman and medieval messuage remains 50m to the East and trackway and enclosure cropmarks  a furher 150m. as well as a recorded barrow.
     *  Anglo Saxon cemetery 488m to the South.
     *  Anglo Saxon cemetery 550m to the North.
     *  Late medieval manor house and associated earthworks 400m to the North West.
     *   17thC brick production 250m to the North West ( probably used in the Malt House.)
     *    Medieval/ post medieval manor house  260m to the North.
     *     A light scatter of prehistoric flintwork and some pottery across most of the area immediately to the North East and North West of the site..
     *     Prehistoric ring ditch 739m to the South East
     *       Enclosure cropmarks 880m to the South East. 
The whole area seems to have been the scene of considerable activity from the earliest times  and below ground archaeology cannot be disregarded.
